# Rancho Little League Team Parent Information – Spring 2019

# **Table of Contents**

2019 Rancho Little League Board Members	2
Team Parent Welcome Letter	3
Frequently Asked Questions	4
Safety Rules and Guidelines	5
Rancho Little League Code of Conduct	6
Little League Pledge	7
2019 Events	8
2019 Opening Ceremonies	8
Opening Day Booths	9
2019 Picture Day – 3/30/19	10
2019 Hat / Jersey Pickup	11
2019 RLL Fundraiser	12
Little League 2019 Bat Requirements/Guidelines	13
2019 RLL All Star Information	15
Trophy Information	16

# **2019 Rancho Little League Board Members**

Position	Officer Names & Emails	
President	Roland Mourad	
	brecmou@msn.com	
Vice President	Matt Pray	
	matt.pray@bootleggersbrewery.com	
Treasurer	Amanda Gentry	
	mandaloo77@aol.com	
Secretary	Sarah Torres	
	Sarahtorres427427@gmail.com	
Safety Coordinator	Gary Lee	
	Garylee09@gmail.com	
Rules and Regulations	Matt Prey	
_	Matt.pray@bootleggersbrewery.com	
Equipment Coordinator	Chris Torres	
	03ct51@gmail.com	
Team Parent Coordinator	Becky Bolton	
	beckybolton@hotmail.com	
Webmaster	Gary Lee	
	Garylee09@gmail.com	
Public Relations	Troy Gentry	
	Mandaloo77@aol.com	
Field Coordinator	Ricky Herrera	
Concession Manager	Primo Morales	
	Rcprimo75@gmail.com	
Scheduling	Matt Pray	
	Matt.pray@bootleggersbrewery.com	
Ump Coordinator	Primo Morales	
	RCprimo75@gmail.com	

Snack Bar	RLL Main phone number	(909)980-0060
Sports Complex	Pay Phone	(909)980-9014
District 71 Representative	Doug Morris	(909)605-1300
Asst. District Administrator		(909)239-6389
		(909)989-8254

**Team Parent Welcome Letter** 

**Hello Team Parents!!** 

Welcome to the 2019 Rancho Little League Spring season. Thank You for volunteering for the Team Parent

position! Although some parents are veterans to the league, there are several "first timers." No matter which

category you fall into, your volunteerism is greatly appreciated!

We understand the sacrifices you are making by stepping up to this challenge...and a challenge it will be! With

good organization and communication skills in place you will be extremely successful in your role!

A little bit about the league: This is the 30th year for Rancho Little League. The league is run solely by

volunteers. Rancho Little League does not have any paid employees! Even the Board of Directors are all

volunteers. The board puts in countless hours and is hard at work even during the "off-season." It is this

dedication to the children and the game of baseball that allows our league to prosper and grow. None of this

would be possible without the help of our volunteers!

Again, on behalf of Rancho Little League we welcome you to the 2019 Little League season. Please do not be

afraid to ask questions or ask for help. The Board is here to support you, and make sure you, and your team,

have a positive and productive season!

Thank you for your time! PLAY BALL!

Sincerely,

Rancho Little League

**Board of Directors** 

3

## **Frequently Asked Questions**

- 1. What is my role as Team Parent?
  - a. Assist the Manager and coaches with players/parents
  - b. Make phone calls when needed
  - c. Plan team parties
  - d. Prep and organize the team on picture day
  - e. Handle and execute the fundraiser
    - i. Make sure the money is due on or before the deadline
  - f. Be the middle man between the league and the players/parents
- 2. Who can I call if I have questions regarding my duties?
  - a. Team Parent Coordinator
    - i. Becky Bolton (661) 618-8077 or becky\_bolton@hotmail.com
  - b. Division Player Agent
    - i. See Board Roster
  - c. League President
    - i. See Board Roster
- 3. What do I do if I have ANY problems with a player/parent?
  - a. Try to resolve it with the parent or player
  - b. Get the teams manager involved
  - c. Call the Division Player Agent
  - d. Call the League President
- 4. What do I do if there is an upset parent who is making a scene at the field?
  - a. Try to **calm** the situation immediately
  - b. Have the manager try to resolve it immediately
  - c. Contact the snack bar for a board member's help immediately
  - d. Call the police (in severe cases)
- 5. Whose job is it to obtain sponsorships?
  - a. The entire team
  - b. Distribute sponsorship forms to ALL of the parents

## **Safety Rules and Guidelines**

- 1. NO swinging of bats in the dugout, bats must be in rack until the at bat.
- 2. Players need use the restroom with a parent to ensure safety.
- **3.** NO food in the dugout.
- **4.** NO jewelry (only medic-alert).
- 5. NO batter on deck. We do not want an accident to happen.
- **6.** NO practice swings. Again, we need to keep the kids safe.
- 7. An adult, league approved volunteer, must be in the dugout at ALL times.
- **8.** NO parents allowed in the dugout (unless to cover for the team parent).
- **9.** Players are to remain in the dugout at ALL times.
- **10.** Players must remain BEHIND the provided fencing inside the dugout. Gates are to be closed during games.
- 11. Players must have the manager's permission to leave the dugout.
- 12. Banners are to be hung facing spectators (and NEVER the players).
- **13.** No cussing or swearing neither in the dugout nor on the playing field ever. Please refer to the "code of conduct."
- 14. Children & parents must keep their hands to themselves (i.e. no hitting). Refer to the "code of conduct."
- 15. Players that throw equipment will be ejected from the game and possibly the next.
- **16. Ejected** parents, players, spectators, managers, or coaches are to leave the park **entirely.** They are suspended for the remainder of the game ejected from AND the next game as well. They can NOT even be at the field to watch.
- 17. No smoking, vaping or chewing tobacco on school grounds (state law).
- 18. NO dogs allowed on school grounds. They will be asked to leave. THIS IS MANDATED BY THE SCHOOL DISTRICT (If the parent/family member/friend refuses to remove the dog from school grounds, the player affiliated with the dog owner will be ejected from the game and must leave the fields immediately). Service animals, must be registered with the league, must have service certificate to obtain approval.
- 19. Ice IS available at the snack bar for injured players.
- **20.** ALL injuries or incidents regarding players MUST be reported **immediately** to the safety coordinator or other present board member. NO matter how minor it is, report it ©
- **21.** Do not engage in a confrontation with any parent(s). Get a board member involved immediately for any conduct unbecoming at the field as soon as an issue arises so the situation can be deescalated.
- **22.** Know the medical issues of **every** player on your team and have a one-on-one with the parents of the player to have a plan in place in the event a medical emergency should arise.
- 23. Medical release forms are to be at every practice AND game. NO exceptions.

For any additional questions or concerns please see an acting board member. We are here to help!

#### Rancho Little League Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors of Rancho Little League of Rancho Cucamonga, California has implemented the following Parent Code of Conduct for the important message it holds about the proper role of parents in supporting their child in sports. As a parent, you should read and understand this Code of Conduct and sign the registration form acknowledging your agreement to abide by it prior to your children participating in our League.

Any parent guilty of improper conduct at any game or practice will be asked to leave the sports facility and be suspended from the following game.

Repeat and/or serious violations may be cause for a multiple game suspension, or the season forfeiture of the privilege of attending all remaining games, or loss of membership and expulsion from the League.

#### Preamble

The essential elements of character-building and ethics in sports are embodied in the concept of sportsmanship and six core principles:

- Trustworthiness
- Respect
- Responsibility
- Fairness
- Good Citizenship
- Caring

The highest potential of sports is achieved when competition reflects these "six pillars of character."

#### I therefore agree:

- 1. I will not force my child to participate in sports.
- 2. I will remember that children participate to have fun and that the game is for the youth, not the adults.
- 3. I will inform the coach of any physical disability or ailment that may affect the safety of my child or the safety of others.
- 4. I will learn the rules of the game and policies of the league when this information is provided.
- 5. I and my guests will be a positive role model for my child encouraging sportsmanship, respect and courtesy, demonstrating positive support for all players, coaches, officials and spectators at every game, practice or other sporting event.
- 6. I and my guests will not engage in any kind of unsportsmanlike conduct with any official, coach, player, or parent such as booing, taunting, refusing to shake hands, or using profane language or gestures.

- 7. I will not encourage any behavior or practice that would endanger the health and well being of the athletes.
- 8. I will teach my child to play by the rules and to resolve conflicts without resorting to hostility or violence.
- 9. I will demand that my child treat other players, coaches, officials and spectators with respect regardless of race, creed, color, sex or physical and mental abilities.
- 10. I will teach my child that doing one's best is more important than winning, so that my child will never feel defeated by the outcome of a game or his/her performance.
- 11. I will praise my child for competing fairly and trying hard, and make my child feel like a winner every time.
- 12. I will never ridicule or yell at my child or other participants for making a mistake or losing a competition.
- 13. I will emphasize skill developing practices and how they benefit my child over winning games. I will learn to enjoy games and the spirit of competition, and in the lower age groups, promote a fun, non-competitive spirit.
- 14. I will promote the emotional & physical wellbeing of the athletes ahead of any personal desire I may have for my child to win.
- 15. I will respect the authority of coaches and officials during games and will never question or confront them at the field, and wait to speak with them if needed at a later time and place.
- 16. I will demand a sports environment for my child that is free from drugs, tobacco, and alcohol and I will refrain from the use of these products at all sports events.
- 17. I will refrain from coaching my child or other players during games and practices, unless I am one of the official coaches of the team.
- 18. By enrolling my child and signing the Rancho Little League Registration form, I am making the commitment to adhere to this Code of Conduct, to accept responsibility for my actions, and conduct myself in a positive and good sportsmanship manner at all times.

Parent Signature:	Date:

I trust in God
I love my country
And will respect its laws
I will play fair
And strive to win
But win or lose
I will always do my best

# **2019 Opening Ceremonies**

Opening Day Ceremonies for the 2019 Spring Season will continue as follows:

Where: Rookie American field of Cucamonga Elementary School

(On Archibald between 9<sup>th</sup> St. and Arrow Hwy)

When: Saturday, 3/16/19

Time of Arrival: 8:00AM (ALL teams must arrive no later than 8:00am)

What to Wear: All players should wear his or her full uniform.

Ceremony Time: 9:00 – 10:00 AM

11:00 Opening Day Games: T-Ball, Rookie, Minor & Majors

All teams should arrive at the minor field by 8:30 AM so the line-up process can begin. Each team should consist of all players (in shortest to tallest order), manager and coaches, the team parent, and the team banner (if applicable). No parents are allowed on the field during the ceremony.

All players and teams are to remain on the field and in their designated positions until the ceremony is over.

We will dismiss the teams by division, at which they will have the opportunity to enjoy the day's festivities.

Please make sure your team is respectfully quiet and courteous of all speakers during the ceremonies, and that all instructions are followed when given.

This is very important for the safety, welfare, and organization of the ceremony.

If your team is hosting a fundraiser booth, please make sure you have ample coverage of the booth during the ceremony!

### **Opening Day Booths**

On opening day each team is encouraged to host a carnival style booth.

The booth should consist of a carnival game or carnival style food.

The booth your team hosts is strictly the decision of the team; with the approval of the Team Parent Coordinator.

This is to ensure there are no two booths alike because we want to encourage variety, as well as fairness for all teams participating.

Each Booth may only host one main attraction plus beverage sales.

Here is how it works:

# The field will be open at 7:30 AM for booth set up and each booth should be ready for business by 8:30 AM.

The league will set aside space for the booths to be set up on a "first come first serve basis."

No space will be reserved or held except for space needed by the league and for the league.

All supplies for your booth are the responsibility of the team (i.e. tables, chairs, supplies, volunteers, power source, etc.)

All beverage sale prices are decided on by the Team Parent Coordinator or RLL Board Members prior to the event. Again, this is to keep all sales fair throughout the day.

The prices for your main attraction are the decision of your team. The league has nothing to do with those.

# ALL BOOTH OWNERS MUST PROVIDE THEIR OWN TRASH BAGS. CLEAN UP AND REMOVAL OF ALL TRASH IS THE BOOTH OWNERS RESPONSIBILITY

IF YOU ARE USING ANY TYPE OF GRILL YOU <u>MUST</u> BRING AND UTILIZE A DRIP PAN UNDERNEATH YOUR GRILL. IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A DRIP PAN YOU WILL BE ASKED TO SHUT DOWN THE USE OF YOUR GRILL.

Thanks for playing! ☺

## 2019 Picture Day - 3/30/19

All teams should report to the photographer 15 minutes prior to their scheduled time.

This time is used for checking documentation, proper wear of uniforms, line-up (shortest to tallest, etc.).

Please do not attempt to cut in front of the team in front of you without approval from the photographer or the Team Parent Coordinator.

Any player that is not in attendance at the appointment time will be excluded from the team photo, unless you have approval to wait and let another team go in front of you.

Each player must have the order form filled out whether he/she will be purchasing a larger picture package or not.

The order form must be filled out before lining up your team at the photographer station.

It is the responsibility of the team parent to ensure the team is COMPLETELY ready at the scheduled time or your team will be bumped by the following team if they are ready to go and you are not.

Please contact the Team Parent Coordinator as soon as you know that your team will not be taking pictures for whatever reason.

If your team will not be attending picture day for whatever reason **please be advised there is NO make-update.** 

Thank You!

# 2019 Hat / Jersey Pickup

There will be two (2) Hat / Jersey days. Both will take place at Cucamonga Elementary School between 10am – 12pm (Snack Bar). It is recommended that Managers **OR** the Team Parent pick up the hats/jerseys for their entire team.

**Upper Division Hat/Jersey pick-up** 

(Major, Minors)

March 7th (10am - 12pm)

**Lower Division Hat/Jersey Night:** 

(Rookie, T-ball)

March 9th (10am - 12pm)





# Rancho Little League 2019 Fundraiser Obligation

- 1) Sell 2-60 count boxes of candy at \$1.00 ea. For a total of \$120.00/player.
- 2) The candy sale will run from Saturday April 6th May 4th. The money (\$120.00) is due to the team parent on or before May 5th.
- 3) Only cash or money orders will be accepted. **NO CHECKS!** Only pre-rolled coins will be accepted! **NO LOOSE CHANGE PLEASE!**
- 4) Pay a one-time \$50.00 "Buy Out" fee/player and your fundraiser obligation is met. You will never receive candy.
- 5) The Buy Out must be paid on or before Opening day: Saturday, March 17th
- 6) Checks for the buy-out will only be accepted at the actual time of registration. If you wish to buy out on opening day you must pay cash.
- 7) Buy Outs **not paid on or before opening day** will be considered a forfeit of the option and the player must fulfill his/her candy sale obligation.

#### **Important Note:**

- 1) Any player(s) that do not fulfill his/her league fundraiser obligation will NOT be eligible to receive his/her participation (lower-division)/placement trophy (upper division), pictures, and his/her All-Star eligibility may be jeopardized.
- 2) Please make sure your player(s) money is paid in full and turned in ON-TIME to avoid any ineligibility status.
- 3) Senior division players and junior division high school baseball players have a voluntary option to participate in the league fundraiser.
- 4) The league under "special circumstances" may waive this "voluntary option."

Rancho Little League would like to thank you in advance for your help and cooperation participating in all league events.

Sincerely, Rancho Little League Board of Directors

## Little League 2019 Bat Requirements/Guidelines

#### **Bat Rules**

#### Rule 1.10 - Baseball

The bat must be a baseball bat which meets the USA Baseball Bat standard (USABat) as adopted by Little League. It shall be a smooth, rounded stick, and made of wood or of material and color tested and proved acceptable to the USA Baseball Bat standard (USABat).

Beginning with the 2018 season, non-wood and laminated bats used in the Little League (Majors) and below, Intermediate (50-70) Division, Junior League divisions, and Challenger division shall bear the USA Baseball logo signifying that the bat meets the USABat – USA Baseball's Youth Bat Performance Standard. All BPF – 1.15 bats will be prohibited beginning with the 2018 season. Additionally, starting in 2018, the bat diameter shall not exceed 2% inches for these divisions of play. Additional information is available at LittleLeague.org/batinfo.

#### Tee Ball:

Under the USABat standard, certified Tee Ball bats (26" and shorter) will feature the USA Baseball mark and text which reads ONLY FOR USE WITH APPROVED TEE BALLS. All Tee Ball bats must feature the USA Baseball mark and accompanying text. Tee Ball bats that were produced and/or purchased prior to the implementation of the new standard can be certified using an Approved Tee Ball Sticker via the USA Baseball Tee Ball Sticker Program (<u>USABaseballShop.com</u>) beginning September 1, 2017.

#### Minor/Major Divisions:

It shall not be more than 33 inches in length; nor more than 2½ inches in diameter, and if wood, not less than fifteen-sixteenths (15/16) inches in diameter (7/8 inch for bats less than 30") at its smallest part. Wood bats taped or fitted with a sleeve may not exceed sixteen (16) inches from the small end.

NOTE: Solid one-piece wood barrel bats do not require a USA Baseball logo.

#### Intermediate (50-70) Division and Junior League:

It shall not be more than 34" inches in length; nor more than 2% inches in diameter, and if wood, not less than fifteen-sixteenths (15/16) inches in diameter (7/8 inch for bats less than 30") at its smallest part. Wood bats taped or fitted with a sleeve may not exceed eighteen (18) inches from the small end.

NOTE: Solid one-piece wood barrel bats do not require a USA Baseball logo.

#### **Senior League:**

It shall not be more than 36 inches in length, nor more than 2½ inches in diameter, and if wood, not less than fifteen-sixteenths (15/16) inches in diameter (7/8 inch for bats less than 30") at its smallest part. Wood bats taped or fitted with a sleeve may not exceed eighteen (18) inches from the small end. The bat shall not weigh, numerically, more than three ounces less than the length of the bat (e.g., a 33-inch-long bat cannot weigh less than 30 ounces). All bats not made of a single piece of wood shall meet the Batted Ball Coefficient of Restitution (BBCOR) performance standard, and such bats shall be so labeled with a silkscreen or other permanent certification mark. The certification mark shall be rectangular, a minimum of a half-inch on each side and located on the barrel of the bat in any contrasting color. Aluminum/alloy and composite bats shall be marked as to their material makeup being aluminum/alloy or composite. This marking shall be silkscreen or other permanent certification mark, a minimum of one-half-inch on each side, and located on the barrel of the bat in any contrasting color.

#### **Little League Challenger Division:**

It shall not be more than 33 inches in length; nor more than 2% inches in diameter, and if wood, not less than fifteen-sixteenths (15/16) inches in diameter (7/8 inch for bats less than 30") at its smallest part. Wood bats taped or fitted with a sleeve may not exceed sixteen (16) inches from the small end.

NOTE: Solid one-piece wood barrel bats do not require a USA Baseball logo.

#### **Senior League Challenger Division:**

It shall not be more than 36 inches in length, nor more than 2½ inches in diameter, and if wood, not less than fifteen-sixteenths (15/16) inches in diameter (7/8 inch for bats less than 30") at its smallest part. Wood bats taped or fitted with a sleeve may not exceed eighteen (18) inches from the small end. The bat shall not weigh, numerically, more than three ounces less than the length of the bat (e.g., a 33-inch-long bat cannot weigh less than 30 ounces). All bats not made of a single piece of wood shall meet either 1) the Batted Ball Coefficient of Restitution (BBCOR) performance standard, and such bats shall be so labeled with a silkscreen or other permanent certification mark which shall be rectangular, a minimum of a half-inch on each side, and located on the barrel of the bat in any contrasting color, or 2) the USA Bat standard and shall bear the USA Baseball logo signifying that the bat meets the USABat – USA Baseball's Youth Bat Performance Standard. Aluminum/alloy and composite bats shall be marked as to their material makeup being aluminum/alloy or composite. This marking shall be silkscreen or other permanent certification mark, a minimum of one-half-inch on each side, and located on the barrel of the bat in any contrasting color.

In all divisions, a non-wood bat must have a grip of cork, tape, or composition material, and must extend a minimum of 10 inches from the small end. Slippery tape or similar material is prohibited.

- **NOTE 1:** Whiffle ball type bats are permissible in all Challenger Divisions.
- **NOTE 2:** The traditional batting donut is not permissible.
- **NOTE 3:** Tee Ball bats maybe used in the Challenger Divisions. Under the USABat standard, certified Tee Ball bats (26" and shorter) will feature the USA Baseball mark and text which reads ONLY FOR USE WITH APPROVED TEE BALLS. All Tee Ball bats must feature the USA Baseball mark and accompanying text. Tee Ball bats that were produced and/or purchased prior to the implementation of the new standard can be certified using an Approved Tee Ball Sticker via the USA Baseball Tee Ball Sticker Program (USABaseballShop.com) beginning September 1, 2017.
- **NOTE 4:** Non-wood bats may develop dents from time to time. Bats that have cracks or sharp edges, or that cannot pass through the approved Little League bat ring for the appropriate division must be removed from play. The 2½-inch bat ring must be used for bats labeled 2½. The 2½-inch bat ring must be used for bats labeled for 2½.
- NOTE 5: An illegal bat must be removed. Any bat that has been altered shall be removed from play.

#### Rule 1.10 - Softball

The bat must be a softball bat which meets Little League specifications and standards as noted in this rule. It shall be a smooth, rounded stick and made of wood or a material tested and proved acceptable to Little League standards. The bat shall be no more than 33 inches (34 inches for **Junior/Senior League**) in length, not more than two and one-quarter (2½) inches in diameter, and if wood, not less than fifteen-sixteenth (15/16) inches in diameter (7/8 inch for bats less than 30 inches) at its smallest part. Non-wood bats shall be printed with a BPF (bat performance factor) of 1.20. Bats may be taped or fitted with a sleeve for a distance not exceeding 16 inches from the small end. Colored bats are acceptable. A non-wood bat must have a grip of cork, tape or composition material, and must extend a minimum of 10 inches from the small end. Slippery tape or similar material is prohibited.

#### An illegal or altered bat must be removed.

In all divisions, non-wood bat must have a grip of cork, tape, or composition material, and must extend a minimum of 10 inches from the small end. Slippery tape or similar material is prohibited.

- **NOTE 1:** The traditional batting donut is not permissible.
- **NOTE 2:** The use of pine tar or any other similar adhesive substance is prohibited at all levels of Little League Baseball and Softball. Use of these substances will result in the bat being declared illegal and removed from play.
- **NOTE 3:** Non-wood bats may develop dents from time to time. Bats that have cracks or sharp edges, or that cannot pass through the approved Little League bat ring for the appropriate division must be removed from play. The 2½-inch bat ring must be used for bats labeled 2½. The 2½-inch bat ring must be used for bats labeled for 2½.
- **NOTE 4:** An illegal bat must be removed. Any bat that has been altered shall be removed from play. **PENALTY** See Rule 6.06(d).

#### 2019 RLL All Star Information

We anticipate we will be announcing the 2019 All-Star teams at closing ceremonies (6/1/19). The following is very important information you need to be aware of and fulfill as a part of your child being elected onto this season's All-Star team. This is as complete list of information that we have at this point, any further updates will come from your Team Parent or Manager.

- 1. Mandatory meeting Sunday following closing ceremonies at 9am. Location: Cucamonga Elementary School (6/1/19)
- 2. Documentation requirements for Sunday meeting:
  - A. Three (3) proof of residency documents, **dated on or before February 1 of the current year**. Per Little League, "Residence shall be established and supported by documents, dated on or before February 1 of the current year, from THREE OR MORE of the following categories to determine residency of such parent(s) or guardian:"
    - 1. Driver's License
    - 2. Voter's Registration
    - 3. School records
    - 4. Welfare/child care records
    - 5. Federal records
    - 6. State records
    - 7. Local (municipal) records
    - 8. Support payment records
    - 9. Homeowner or tenant records
    - 10. Utility bills (i.e., gas, electric, water/sewer, phone, mobile phone, heating, waste disposal)
    - 11. Financial (loan, credit, investments, etc.) records
    - 12. Insurance documents
    - 13. Medical records
    - 14. Military records
    - 15. Internet, cable or satellite records
    - 16. Vehicle records
    - 17. Employment records
    - \* NOTE: Example Three utility bills (three items from No. 10 above) constitute only ONE document
  - B. A copy of an original birth certificate
  - C. \$50 Uniform Fee (includes hat, Jersey and t-shirt)
- 3. All-Star Program dedication ad flyer, date and format to be determined.
- 4. All-Star pictures date/time and place will be disclosed by team coach/parent. An order form will be given out by the team parent.
- 5. Approximate start date for games is June 22<sup>nd</sup> (subject to change), however please check with your manager or team parent for actual date and times.

Thank you for your cooperation with this process.

# WHO GETS A TROPHY?

All players in **non-competitive divisions** (Tball/Rookie National) will receive a participation trophy.

For **competitive divisions** (Rookie American, Minors, Majors, Seniors) trophies will be awarded to the top placing teams depending on how many teams are within the respective division.

Trophies will be awarded as follows:

Divisions with 4 teams: 1st place team awarded trophy

Divisions with 5 teams: 1st & 2nd place teams awarded trophies

Divisions with 6 teams: 1st, 2nd and 3rd place teams awarded trophies

